
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MEETING OF THE STANDARDS ADVISORY BOARD  
 
DATE: MONDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2013  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: THE FOUNTAIN ROOM - GROUND FLOOR, TOWN HALL, 
TOWN HALL SQUARE, LEICESTER 
 
 
Members of the Board 
 
Ms Amanda Fitchett (Independent Member) 
Mr Desmond Henderson (Independent Member) 
Ms Joanne Holland (Independent Member) 
Two Vacancies (Independent Members) 
 
Councillors: Shelton, Sood and Waddington 
 
 
Standing Invitees: 
Mr David Lindley (Independent Person) 
Ms Caroline Roberts (Independent Person) 
 
 
Members of the Board are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 
 

 
 
for the Monitoring Officer 
 

Officer contact: Graham Carey 
Democratic Support, Leicester City Council 

Town Hall, Town Hall Square, Leicester LE1 9BG 
(Tel. 0116 229 8813)   

 



 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND MEETINGS 
You have the right to attend Cabinet to hear decisions being made.  You can also 
attend Committees, as well as meetings of the full Council.  Tweeting in formal 
Council meetings is fine as long as it does not disrupt the meeting.  There are 
procedures for you to ask questions and make representations to Scrutiny 
Committees, Community Meetings and Council.  Please contact Democratic 
Support, as detailed below for further guidance on this. 
 
You also have the right to see copies of agendas and minutes. Agendas and minutes 
are available on the Council’s website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by 
contacting us as detailed below. 
 
Dates of meetings are available at the Customer Service Centre, King Street, Town 
Hall Reception and on the Website.  
 
There are certain occasions when the Council's meetings may need to discuss 
issues in private session.  The reasons for dealing with matters in private session are 
set down in law. 
 
 
WHEELCHAIR ACCESS 
Meetings are held at the Town Hall.  The Meeting rooms are all accessible to 
wheelchair users.  Wheelchair access to the Town Hall is from Horsefair Street 
(Take the lift to the ground floor and go straight ahead to main reception). 
 
 
BRAILLE/AUDIO TAPE/TRANSLATION 
If there are any particular reports that you would like translating or providing on audio 
tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this for you (production times will 
depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
 
INDUCTION LOOPS 
There are induction loop facilities in meeting rooms.  Please speak to the Democratic 
Services Officer at the meeting if you wish to use this facility or contact them as 
detailed below. 
 
General Enquiries - if you have any queries about any of the above or the 
business to be discussed, please contact Elaine Baker, Democratic Support on 
0116 229 8813 or email Graham Carey@leicester.gov.uk or call in at the Town 
Hall. 
 
Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 252 6081 

 
 
 



 

 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 

 

 To appoint a Chair for this meeting  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business on 
the agenda.  
 

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2013 are attached and the 
Board is asked to confirm them as a correct record.  
 

5. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 

6. PRIVATE SESSION  
 

 

 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 

 

Under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are 
discussed. 

 

The Committee is recommended to consider the following reports in private on 
the grounds that they contain ‘exempt’ information as defined by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, as amended and consequently 
that the Cabinet makes the following resolution:- 

 

“that the press and public be excluded during consideration of the following 
reports in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended, because they involve the likely disclosure 
of 'exempt' information, as defined in the Paragraphs detailed below of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Act and taking all the circumstances into account, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the information as exempt 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

Paragraph 1 

Information relating to any individual 

 

 



 

 

Paragraph 2 

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual  

 

Paragraph 7A 

Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality. 

 

Paragraph 7C  

The deliberations of a standards committee or of a sub-committee of a 
standards committee established under the provisions of Part 3 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on a matter referred under the 
provisions of section 60(2) or (3), 64(2), 70(4) or (5) or 71(2) of that Act.  

 
7. COMPLAINT AGAINST A COUNCILLOR: TO 

CONSIDER THE INVESTIGATOR'S FINDINGS  
 

Appendix B 

 The Monitoring Officer submits a report.  
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
STANDARDS ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
Held: THURSDAY, 10 JANUARY 2013 at 5.00pm 
 
 
 

P R E S E N T : 
 

   
  Ms Amanda Fitchett Independent Member 
  Mr Desmond Henderson  Independent Member 
  Councillor Shelton 
  Councillor Waddington 
  Ms Caroline Roberts Independent Person 
 
 

* * *   * *   * * * 
10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Ms Joanne Holland and Ms Glynis 
Middleton (Independent Members) and Councillor Grant. 
 

11. MEMBERS NOT REQUIRED TO ATTEND 

 

 The Monitoring Officer reported that arrangements had been made with 
Councillor Sood and Mr D Lindley (Independent Person) not to attend the 
meeting as their attendance would not be required in order to meet the quorum 
requirements for the meeting.   
 
Members were reminded that the quorum for the Board was three, with the 
majority or equal number of Independent Members.  It had been known in 
advance of the meeting that there would only be a maximum of two 
independent members in attendance, and, therefore, arrangements had been 
made to ensure that no more than two Councillors attended.   Also, there was 
only a requirement for the Independent Person involved in an investigation to 
be present.  Mr Lindley was not, therefore, required to attend either. 
 

12. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

 

 RESOLVED: 
that Ms Amanda Fitchett be appointed as Chair for the meeting. 

 
Ms Fitchett in the Chair. 

 

Appendix A



 

 

 

 

13. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

 RESOLVED: 
the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2012 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 

 

 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

 

15. PRIVATE SESSION 

 

 RESOLVED: 

“that the press and public be excluded during consideration of the 
following report in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, 
because it would involve the likely disclosure of 'exempt' 
information, as defined in the Paragraphs detailed below of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Act and taking all the circumstances into 
account, it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information. 

 

Paragraph 1 

Information relating to any individual 

 

Paragraph 2 

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
 

16. COMPLAINT AGAINST A COUNCILLOR: TO CONSIDER THE 

INVESTIGATOR'S FINDINGS 

 

 The Monitoring Officer submitted a report asking Members to consider the 
Investigator’s report into complaints referenced 2012/09 and 2012/11 and 
determine whether the Board agreed with the investigator’s findings.   

 
If the Board agreed with the findings, then no further action would follow. 
 
If the Board did not agree with the findings, it could either:- 
 

a) determine that the matter be passed to the Monitoring Officer for 
informal resolution; or 
 

b) determine that the matter be referred to a hearing panel. 
 



 

 

The Board noted that:-  
 

• The option of ‘no further action’ could only flow from an investigator’s 
own conclusion that no breach had occurred. 
 

• The option of ‘informal resolution’ could only flow from the 
agreement of the Board that a breach warranted such resolution.  If 
such resolution was not achievable then the matter should proceed 
to a hearing. 

 

• If the matter was referred for hearing, then a hearing sub-committee 
would be convened to hear the evidence, make findings of fact and 
determine appropriate outcomes. The Hearings Panel was a sub-
committee of the Council’s Standards Committee. The Independent 
Person would be invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel 
and their views sought and taken into consideration before the 
Hearings Panel took any decision on whether the Member’s conduct 
constituted a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to 
any action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct. 

 
The Monitoring Officer reported that the independent investigator had been 
appointed to carry out the investigation into the complaints after they had been 
referred for investigation by the former Assessment Sub-Committee on 14 June 
2012.  The investigation had been completed on 3 December 2012.  
 
The investigator had found that, on the balance of probabilities, the Councillor’s 
conduct had not breached the Code of Conduct.  The reasons for reaching this 
conclusion were set out in detail in the investigator’s report. 
 
The Monitoring Officer stated that once a complaint had been referred for 
investigation, the Standards Committee took ownership of the complaint and 
the complainant then had no part in the process, apart from being a witness in 
the investigation.   The Board had not been convened to hear the complaint 
and/or determine whether a sanction should be applied, its purpose was to 
determine whether it agreed with the investigator’s findings, or not. 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that the complainant had made a further 
submission after receiving the 1st draft of the investigator’s report and the 
investigating officer had then decided to address the issues in the final report.  
The complainant had also sent an e-mail and other documents to the 
independent members and the independent person after receiving the final 
report.  The complainant should not have done this, as there was no right to 
submit additional information to Members of the Board, or to submit further 
information once the final report had been issued. Neither had every member 
of the Board received it.  The subject member (the councillor who was the 
subject of the complaint) had not made any additional representation and was 
also unaware that the complainant had done so. 
 
The Independent Person commented that the complainant had tried to further 



 

 

influence the investigation by submitting two sets of evidence after the report 
had been written. She was also concerned at the length of time that it had 
taken to produce the final report, but accepted that the new standards’ regime 
may have contributed to this.  The Monitoring Officer commented that the final 
report could have been submitted earlier, but the investigating officer had 
wanted to demonstrate fairness by considering and addressing the issues 
raised by complainant’s submission after the draft report had been issued.  The 
final report had been delayed as a result, as it had been re-drafted to take 
account of both the complainant’s and the subject member’s comments in 
relation to these issues. 
 
Board Members discussed the findings and asked questions of the investigator 
to clarify some points. 
 
Members thanked the investigator for undertaking what had proved to be a 
difficult and protracted investigation and for the thorough, fair and honest 
appraisal of the findings.   
   
Ms Caroline Roberts, as the Independent Person advising the Board, stated 
that she agreed with the Investigating Officer’s findings.  She was further 
disappointed that one of the participants had declined to participate in any 
methods for conciliation or mediation.  
 
The Board Members discussed the findings of each element of the complaint 
and agreed with the investigator’s findings on each account, except for one 
Member of the Board who took a different view in relation to the findings 
concerning the telephone call/tweet and site visit elements of the complaint.   
 
RESOLVED: 

1) that the findings of the Investigating Officer as stated in 
paragraph 15.1 of the report that, on the balance of 
probabilities, there has not been a breach of the Council’s 
Code of Conduct be endorsed and, that no further formal 
action be taken in relation to the complaint as a consequence; 
 

2) that the Investigating Officer’s view that mediation would be 
beneficial in this case, if the two parties were agreeable be 
supported, to ensure the subject member and the complainant 
could re-establish a working relationship; 

 
3) that the Monitoring Officer write to the subject member and 

the complainant to inform them of the outcome of the 
complaint and the Board’s views; and  

 
4) that guidance on the use of social media should be prepared 

and sent to all councillors. 
 

17. CLOSE OF MEETING 

 

 The Chair declared the meeting closed at 7.12pm 


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

